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Dorchester Group Limited

Directors’ report

The directors present their annual report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

Principal activities and prospects

The principal activities of the group comprise owning & leasing, managing, and investing in deluxe five-star hotels as
well as providing other hotel management services In addition the group owns commercial properties 1n the USA
Dorchester Group Limited 15 a limuted hability company domaciled and registered in England

During the year, the Group continued to manage and operate the following
Owned properties

The Dorchester Hotel, London,

‘The Beverly Hills Hotel, Los Angeles,
Le Meurnice, Pans,

Hotel Principe di Savoia, Milan,
Hotel Plaza Athenee, Paris

Leased properties

Coworth Park, Ascot, Opened September 2010,
45 Park Lane, London, Opened September 2011,

Investment properties

2 properties in the USA

Hotel management and other services

In addition to the above hotels Dorchester Services Limzited, trading as Dorchester Collection (DC), managed, on
behalf of the Brune: Investment Agency (BIA), the following properties during the last two years

Hotel Bel-Aur, Los Angeles
The New York Palace, New York (management contract ended July 2011),

The group’s first third party hotel management contract commenced mn 2011 at
Le Richemond Hotel, Geneva

Dorchester Services Limited has also provided technucal services under contracts with the Bruner Investment
Agency for various refurbishments of hotel properties and will do so 1n 2013 and 2014 for the owners of
Le Richemond

The directors expect the Group to continue with 1ts current activities of owning, leasing and managing hotels for the
foreseeable future as well as continuing to look for other opportunities to explore and develop new projects

The directors are pleased to announce that on 17 September 2013 the company acquired 100% of the share capital of
Hotel Eden Srl, a five star hotel in Rome, Italy Funding for this acquisition wall be provided by the group parent
companies with a combination of equty and debt

Business review

The consohdated profit on ordinary activities after taxation 1s £18 4m (2011 £28 Om) Ths profit was primanly
driven by an average occupancy rate of 69% (2011 69%) Further, the average room rate increased from £508 to
£518 and RevPAR (revenue per available room) increased almost 3% (including the effect of currency fluctuations)
from £349 to £359



Dorchester Group Limited

Directors’ report (continued)

Going concern

The directors have acknowledged the latest guidance on going concern The group has net current liabthties at 31
December 2012 due to group loans maturing on 30 September 2013 These loans will be replaced with long term
finance from group, or will be extended Whilst the current volatility i financial markets has created general
uncertainty, the group has adequate financial resources being funded entirely by group debt following the repayment
of the group’s external debt prior to the end of December 2012 As discussed in the principal nisks and uncertainties
mcluding financial risk management section below, the current economic chmate has impacted the travel market and
hospitality industry However, the group remains profitable and the outlook 15 one of improvement over 2012 The
directors have reviewed the group’s budget for the next year and considered other plans, concluding that the company
1s well placed to manage its business risks successfully Furthermore, the group has received a commitment of
continuing financial support from 1ts ultumate parent For these reasons, the directors are satisfied that, at the time of
approving the financial statements, 1t 1s appropnate to adopt the going concern basis 1 preparing the financial
statements

Dividend

No dividends were paid duning the year (2011 mul) The group made a profit of £18 4m (2011 £28 O0m), which was
transferred to reserves

Directors and their interests
The details of the directors of the company who served throughout the year except as noted, are as follows

Khairuddin Hammd (appointed 1 August 2012)

Junaidi bin Hapn Masn (apponted 1 January 2012)

Zamab Mohd Yussof (appointed 21 January 2013)

Hap Jaid: Abd Haj1 Sami (appointed 21 January 2013)

Hjh Noorrafidah bint1 Hy Sulaiman (appointed 4 March 2013}
Hap Suharafadzil Hay Yusop

Haj: Ghamt Hamd (resigned 1 January 2012)

Hajah Hartim bint1 Hayn Abdullah (resigned 1 August 2012)
Hajah Hasnah Haji Ibralum (resigned 4 Apnl 2013)

The directors do not have any beneficial interests in the share capital of the company or its subsidiary undertakings

There are no third party indemnities as at 31 December 2012

Principal risks and uncertainties including financial risk management

The most important components of financial risk are interest rate nisk, foreign currency nisk, credit nsk, hiquidity nisk,
cash flow nsk and price nsk  Due to the international nature of the company's business and the assets and habilities
contaired within the company's balance sheet, the directors consider two types of nsk to be most relevant to this
company 1interest rate and currency nsk

Interest rate nsk was hedged by having a capped mterest rate on the group’s major external debt which existed dunng
the year until 1ts replacement with a group loan at the end of December 2012 Funding for the hotels 1s arranged
centrally by the company who regularly monitor interest rate risk Forewgn currency risk 1s mitigated by each hotel
having local bank accounts and loans in the local currency, which reduces 1ts foreign exchange exposure

With a continuing background of uncertamn economic activity and troubled financial markets the 2012 overall results
achieved were beyond management’s expectations and continue to be encouraging for the future, reflecing the
continued overall recovery 1n business experienced by the industry in the destinauons where properties under the
group's management are located, being London, Paris, Milan, Los Angeles and Geneva The year 2012 continues to
show that international travel 1s sull growing and so 1s demand for luxury accommodation

The general economc outlook for 2013 shows hitle change from those conditions of 2012 being a combimnation of
nsing nflation, low interest rates, weak (if any at all) economic growth, debt reduction programmes 1n western
econormnies and low consumer confidence, all of which will have some 1mpact on our business




Dorchester Group Limited

Directors’ report (continued)

We continue to believe that the DC customer geographic representation 1s vaned and the company continues to be
well placed n 1ts existing mature markets 1n Europe, USA and in other critical markets such as Russia, and the
Middle East, whilst also turmng the group’s attention to focus on the ever growing traffic from the Chinese market
Ths, together with aggressive sales, marketing and revenue management strategies and the ability to build attractive
packages will continue to help DC 1n mmereasing its market share i both high and low demand periods

Employees

It 1s the Group’s contimung policy and practice to involve staff by providing and receiving information relevant to the
progress, development and performance of the group Maitters of concern to staff as employees were commumncated
through briefing by executives and heads of departments, a newsletter and traiming courses Consultation with staff
on matters affecting their interests and the general efficiency of the Group took place in various ways, one of these
was through the elected staff representatives on a consultative commuttee which met regularly durmg the year

In relation to the employment of disabled persons, the Group’s policy 15 to give the same consideration to disabled
people as to other people, i regard to applications for employment, continuation of employment, training, career
development and promotion, having regard to therr particular aptitudes and abilities

Political and charitable contributions

During the year, the Group made donations totalling £162,000 (2011 £144,000) for chartable purposes There were
no political donations (2011 £ml)

Auditor
Each of the persons who 1s a director at the date of approval of this report confirms that

e so far as each director 15 aware, there 15 no relevant audit information of which the Company's audaitor 1s unaware,
and

» cach director has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a director 1n order to make themselves aware
of any relevant audit information and to establish that the company's auditor 1s aware of that information

This confirmation 1s given and should be interpreted 1n accordance with the provisions of s418 of the Compamnies Act
2006

A resolution to reappoint Deloitte LLP wall be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting

Approved by the Board of Directors
and signed on behalf of the Board

Director

20 Sedemicer 2013




Dorchester Group Limited

Directors’ responsibilities statement

Directors’® responsibilities statement

The Durectors are responsible for prepaning the Annual Report and the financial statements 1n accordance with
applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the
Directors have chosen to prepare the Group financial statements 1 accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting
Standards (‘IFRSs’) as adopted by the Furopean Union and Article 4 of the 1AS Regulation and have chosen to
prepare the parent company financial statements 1n accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice (Umited Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law) Under company law the Directors must not
approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that peniod

In preparing the parent company financial statements, the Directors are required to

. select suitable accounting pohcies and then apply them consistently

. make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent

. state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any matenal
departures disclosed and explaned 1n the financial statements

. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 1s inappropriate to presume that

the Company will continue 1n business
In prepanng the Group financial statements, International Accounting Standard 1 requires that Directors

. properly select and apply accounting policies
present information including accounting policies, 1n a manner that provides relevant, reliable,
comparable and understandable information

. provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements n IFRSs are
msufficient to enable users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and
conditions on the entity’s financial position and financial performance

. make an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a gomng concern

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and
enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of
fraud and other irregulanties



Dorchester Group Limited

Auditor’s report

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF DORCHESTER GROUP LIMITED

We have audited the financial statements of Dorchester Group Limited for the year ended 31 December 2012 which
comprise the Consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the Consolidated statement of financial position, the
Consolidated statement of changes in equity, the Consolidated cash flow statement and the related notes 1 to 38, the
Parent company balance sheet and the related notes A to M The financial reporting framework that has been apphed
n the preparation of the group financial statements 1s applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) as adopted by the European Umon The financial reporting framework that has been applied mn the
preparation of the parent company financial statements 1s applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards
(Unmited Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

This report 15 made solely to the company’s members, as a body, i accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those
matters we are required to state to them m an auditor’s report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent
permutted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyene other than the company and the company’s
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opimions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors® Responsibilities Statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view  Qur responsibility 1s to audit and
express an opmion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on
Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Audiing Practices Board’s Ethical
Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audst involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures 1n the financial statements sufficient to give
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or
error  This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the group’s and the parent
company’s circumstances and have been consistently apphed and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by the directors, and the overall presentation of the financial statements In
addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information 1n the annual report to identify matenal
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements If we become aware of any apparent matenal misstatements or
mnconsistencies we conswder the implications for our report

Opinion on financial statements

In our opmion

. the financial statements give a true and farr view of the state of the group’s and of the parent
company’s affairs as at 31 December 2012 and of the group’s profit for the year then ended,

. the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by
the European Union,

. the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and

. the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies
Act 2006

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opuuon the information given 1n the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial statements
are prepared 15 consistent with the financial statements




Dorchester Group Limited

Auditor’s report (continued)

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Comparies Act 2006 requires us to report to
you 1f, i our opimion

. adequate accounting records have not been Kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our
audit have not been received from branches not visited by us, or

. the parent company financial statements are not 1n agreement with the accounting records and returns,
or

certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or
we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audst

. /«KA
i \ AN %
Timothy Steel, ACA (Semor Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Delostte LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor

London, United Kingdom
2o Seckeakr 2013



Dorchester Group Limited

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2012

Note

Continuing operations
Revenue 5
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Admimistrative expenses
Revaluation gains on mmvestment property 10
Revaluation {deficit)/reversal of revaluation

deficit of hotel property

Operating profit

Investment revenues
Finance costs 11

Profit before tax

Tax 12

Profit for the year 7

Other comprehensive income

Gains on property revaluation

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations

Exchange differences relating to components of other
comprehensive income

Actuanal (loss)/gain on defined benefit pension schemes

Deferred tax credit/(charge) relating to components of other
comprehensive income

Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Year Year
ended ended
2012 2011
£°000 £000
304,460 290,968
(147.444) (147,412)
157,016 143,556
(120,981) (113, 938)
2,028 6,574
(8,523) 2,553
29,540 38,745
2,057 645
(5,137) (6,754)
26,460 32,636
(8,074) (4,648)
18,386 27,988
4,597 49,186
(14,649) 1,004
(7,360) (5,251)
(872) 2,176
4,406 (7,436)
(13,878) 39679
4,508 67,667

Total comprehensive income for both years 1s attributable solely to the owners of the company



Dorchester Group Limited

Consolidated statement of financial position
As at 31 December 2012

Note
Non-current assets
Goodwll 13
Property, plant and equipment 14
Investment property 15
Trade and other receivables 19
Deferred tax assets 22
Current assets
Inventones 18
Investments 17
Trade and other recervables 19
Cash and bank balances
Total assets
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 24
Current tax habilities
Obligations under finance leases 23
Borrowings 20
Denvative financial instruments 21
Net current (Liabilities)/assets
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 20
Retirement benefit obligations 34
Deferred tax habilities 22
Long-term provisions 25
Obligations under finance leases 23
Trade and other payables 24

Total hiabihities

Net assets

2012 2011 2010
£°000 £000 £000
33,218 34,214 35,091
1,320,641 1,344,336 1,294,051
97,697 99,948 92,234
3,065 3,346 -
31,166 32,093 29,668
1,485,787 1,513,937 1,451,044
6,833 6,972 7,185
2,520 7,011 6,100
121,670 116,482 103,854
27,477 22,712 41,129
158,500 153,177 158,268
1,644,287 1,667,114 1,609,312
58,118 57,626 47,614
3,372 951 2,468
152 152 152
203,929 77,355 75,888

- 3,268 4,889

265,571 139,352 131,011
(107,071) 13,825 27,257
273,006 418,247 444,793
8,817 8,264 10,652
274,872 285,131 276,292
1,461 765 602

103 255 407
3,605 2,756 878
561,864 715,418 733,624
827,435 854,770 864,635
816,852 812,344 744 677

10



Dorchester Group Limited

Consolidated statement of financial position (continued)

As at 31 December 2012

Note
Equity
Share capital 26
Share premium 27
Revaluation reserve 28
Retaned earmings 30
Translation reserve 29
Other reserves 31
Total equity

The financial statements were approved by the board of directors and authonised for 1ssue on

They were signed on 1ts behalf by

Director W

Date ’&) Sm“f\w @\%

2012 2011 2010
£2000 £°000 £°000
120,009 120,009 120,009
37,711 31,711 37,711
392,040 387,617 349,809
203,240 185,631 156,154
(8.,815) 8,709 8,327
72,667 72,667 72,667
816,852 812,344 744,677

1



Dorchester Group Limited

Consolidated statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 December 2012

Share Capital Share Revaluation Merger  Translation Retained Total Equity
Premuum Reserve Reserve Reserve Earnings
Account
£000 £000 £000 £9000 £°000 £2000 £°000
Balance at 1 January 2011 120,009 37,711 349,809 72,667 8,327 156,154 744,677
Profit for the penod - - - - - 27,988 27,988
Other comprehensive income for
the period - - 37,808 - 382 1,489 39,679
Total comprechensive income for - - 37,808 - 382 29,477 67,667
the penod
Balance at 31 December 2011 120,009 37,711 387,617 72,667 8,709 185,631 812,344
Profit for the penod - - - - - 18,386 18,386
Other comprehensive
mcome/(loss) for the penod - - 4,423 - (17,524) 777 (13,878)
Total comprehensive - - 4,423 - (17,524) 17,609 4,508
income/{loss) for the period
Balance at 31 December 2012 120,006 37,711 392,040 72,667 (8,815) 203,240 816,852

12




Dorchester Group Limited

Consolidated cash flow statement
For the year ended 31 December 2012

Net cash from operating activities

Investing activities

Interest recerved

Purchases of property, plant and equipment & additions to
mvestment properties

Net cash used in investing activities

Fmancing activities

Repayments of borrowings

Repayments of obligations under finance
leases

Loans advanced

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) 1 cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Note
32

32

Year Year
ended ended
2012 2011
£°000 £000
42,081 32,901 i
1,950 645
(29,748) (32,049)
(27,798) (31,404)
(160,633) (25,390}
(152) (152)
147,384 6,365
(12,901) (19,177)
1,382 (17,680)
29,723 47,229
(1,108) 174
29,997 29,723

13



Dorchester Group Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2012

1 General information

Dorchester group limted 1s a company mcorporated m the United Kingdom under the Companies Act The address of
the registered office 1s 3 Tiney Street, London WI1K 1BJ The nature of the group’s operations, its principal
activibies and business review are set out 1n the directors’ report on page 3

These financial statements are presented in pounds sterling The functional currencies of group companies are the
currency 1n which the particular company operates, which 1s Sterling, Euro or US dollar Foreign operations are
mcluded m accordance with the policies set out 1n note 3

2. Adoption of IFRS

The Group adopted IFRS in preparation of its 2011 non-statutory financial statements and therefore stated
unconditional compliance with IFRS 1n the 2011 non-statutory financial statements

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with IFRS resulted in changes to the
accounting pohicies with the 2010 annual financial statements prepared under UK GAAP The accounting policies set
out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these consolidated financial statements They
have also been applied in prepaning an opening IFRS balance sheet at 1 January 2010 for the purposes of the
transition to IFRS, as required by IFRS 1 ‘First-time Adoption of Intemational Financial Reporting Standards’ The
impact of the transition from UK GAAP to IFRS 1s explamed in Note 38 to the financial statements

The following choices available under IFRS 1 have been used 1n preparing the financial statements

» Not to recognise separately cumulative foreign exchange movements up to 1 January 2010, and
+  Elected to fair value frechold land and buildings as 1 January 2010

Accounting standards not yet effective

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following Standards and Interpretations which have not
been applied in these financial statements were n 1ssue but not yet effective (and 1n some cases had not yet been
adopted by the EU)

IFRS 7 (amended) IDisclosures — Transfers of Financial Assets
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 10 Consohdated Financial Statements

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

IFRS 12 Dusclosure of Interests 1in Other Enuities

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

IAS 1 (amended) Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income
IAS 12 (amended) Deferred Tax Recovery of Underlying Assets
IAS 19 (revised) Employee Benefits

1AS 27 (revised) Separate Fmancial Statements

IAS 28 (revised) Investments in Associates and Jownt Ventures

The directors do not expect that the adoption of the standards listed above will have a matenal impact on the financial
statements of the Group 1n future peniods, except as follows

e IAS 19 (as amended)} will impact the measurement of the various components representing movements in the
defined benefit pension obligation and associated disclosures, but not the group’s total obhigation It 1s likely that
following the replacement of expected returns on plan assets with a net finance cost n the income statement, the
profit for the period will be reduced and accordingly other comprehensive income increased

Beyond the information above, 1t 15 not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of these standards
until a detailed review has been completed

14




Dorchester Group Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012

3. Sigmificant accounting policies
Basis of accounting

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention, modified to include the revaluation of
mvestment properties and land and buildings and are n accordance with the Interational Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Umon

Basis of consolidation

The Group financial statements consohdate the financial statements of the Dorchester Group Lirmted and 1ts
subsidiary undertakings drawn up to 31 December each year All subsidianes are 100% owned erther directly or
indirectly

Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis which assumes that the Company will continue
i operational existence for the foreseeable future, as further discussed in the Director’s report

Goodwill
Goodwill ansing 1in a business combmation 15 recogmsed as an asset at the date that control 1s acquired (the
acquisition date) Goodwill 1s measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any

non-controlling nterest in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity nterest (if any) in
the entity over the net of the acquisiton-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the habilities assumed

If, after reassessment, the Group’s nterest in the fair value of the acquiree’s 1dentifiable net assets exceeds the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree (1f any), the excess 1s recogmsed immediately n profit or
loss as a bargain purchase gain

Goodwill 1s not amortised but 18 reviewed for impawrment at least annually For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill 1s allocated 1o each of the Group’s cash-generating uruts expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination Cash-generating units to which goodwall has been allocated are tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there 1s an indication that the unit may be impaired If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit 1s less than the carrying amount of the umt, the imparment loss 1s allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwll allocated to the umt and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount
of each asset in the umit An impairment loss recognmsed for goodwill 1s not reversed 1n a subsequent peniod

On disposal of a subsidiary, the attnbutable amount of goodwll 1s included 1n the determination of the profit or loss
on disposal

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises -

¢ Income from the ownership and operation of hotels, excluding taxes, and 1s recogmsed as the related services are
provided

#* Rental mncome from investment properties and 1s recogmsed 1 the income statement on a straight-hne basis over
the term of the lease Lease mcentives granted are recogmised as an mtegral part of the total rental income

The cost of obtaining hotel management agreements are deferred within prepayments and amortised over the
mimmum contract peried

15




Dorchester Group Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases

Leases are classified as either finance leases or operating leases Finance leases occur whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee  All other leases are classified as operating
leases Assets held under finance leases and other similar contracts are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are
deprectated over the shorter of the lease terms and their useful economic lives The capital elements of the finance
lease obligations are recorded as liabilities, whulst the interest elements are charged to profit or loss over the period of
the leases to produce a constant rate of charge on the balance of capital repayments outstanding

Amounts payable under operating leases are charged to profit or loss on an accruals basis Amounts recervable under
operating leases are credited to profit or 1oss on an accruals basis

Foreign currencies

The mdrvidual financial statements of each group company are presented in the currency of the primary economic
environment m which 1t operates (its functional currency) For the purpose of the consolidated financial statements,
the results and financial position of each group company are expressed 1n pounds sterling, which 1s the functional
currency of the Company, and the presentation currency for the consolidated financial statements

In preparmg the financial statements of the individual compames, transactions 1n currencies other than the entity’s
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recogmsed at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the
transactions At each balance sheet date, monetary assets and habilities that are denominated 1n foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailling at that date Non-monetary items carned at fair value that are denommated 1n
foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determuned Non-monetary
items that are measured 1n terms of histoncal cost 1n a foreign currency are not retranslated

The assets and habilities of foreign subsidiaries are translated into sterling at the closing rates of exchange and the
differences ansing from the translation of the opening net investment 1n subsidianies at the closing rate and matched
long-term foreign currency borrowings are taken direct to translation reserve and reported m the statement of
comprehensive income The revenues and expenses of foreign subsidiaries are translated into sterhing at the average
rate of exchange for the penod

Pension costs

For defined benefit schemes the amounts charged to operating profit are the current service costs and gamns and losses
on settlements and curtailments They are included as part of staff costs Past service costs are recogmsed
immediately mn profit or loss 1f the benefits have vested If the benefits have not vested immediately, the costs are
recogmsed over the period until vesting occurs The nterest cost and the expected return on assets are shown as a net
amount of other finance costs or credits adjacent to interest Actuanal gains and losses are recogmsed immediately 1n
other comprehensive mcome

Defined benefit schemes are funded, with the assets of the scheme held separately from those of the Group, 1n
separate trustee-admimistered funds Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilhities are measured on
an actuanial basis using the projected unit method and discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a
high-quality corporate bond of equivalent currency and term to the scheme habihties The actuanal valuations are
obtained at least trienmially and are updated at each balance sheet date The resulting defined benefit asset or hability,
net of the related deferred tax, 1s presented separately after other net assets on the face of the consolidated statement
of financial position

For defined contribution schemes the amount charged to profit or loss 1n respect of pension costs and other post-
retirement benefits 1s the contnibutions payable m the year Differences between contributions payable 1n the year and
contributions actually paid are shown as either accruals or prepayments i the consolidated statement of financial
position

Further information on pension arrangements 1s set out 1n note 34

16



Dorchester Group Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012

3 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Taxation

Current tax, meluding UK corporation tax and foreign tax, 1s provided at amounts expected to be paid (or recovered)
using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax 1s the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities 1n the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used m the computation of taxable profit,
and 1s accounted for using the balance sheet liability method Deferred tax habilities are generally recogmised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recogmsed to the extent that it 1s probable that taxable
profits wall be available aganst which deductible temporary differences can be utilised Such assets and habilities are
not recogmsed 1f the temporary difference arises from the imtial recogmtion of goodwill or from the imtial
recognition (other than n a busmess combmation) of other assets and liabilities m a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit

Deferred tax habilities are recogmsed for taxable temporary differences ansing on investments 1n subsidiaries and
assoctates, and interests 1n jomnt ventures, except where the group 1s able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and 1t 1s probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets 1s reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that 1t 1s
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered

Deferred tax 1s calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply 1n the pertod when the hability 1s settled or the
asset 15 realised based on tax laws and rates that have been enacted at the balance sheet date Deferred tax 1s charged
or credited 1n the income statement, except when 1t relates to items charged or credited 1in other comprehensive
mncome, 1 which case the deferred tax 15 also dealt with in other comprehensive income

Deferred tax assets and hiabilities are offset when there 1s a legally enforceable night to set off current tax assets
agamst current tax habilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the
Group intends to settle 1ts current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis

Deferred tax 1s recogmsed 1n respect of the retained earmings of overseas subsidiaries and associates only to the extent
that, at the balance sheet date, dividends have been accrued as receivable or a binding agreement to distribute past
earnings 1n future has been entered into by the subsidiary or associate

Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings are stated at valuation, being the farr value at the date of revaluation, less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses Revaluations are performed wath sufficient
regulanity such that the carrying amount does not differ materially from that which would be determmed using farr
values at the balance sheet date

Plant and equpment 1s stated at cost, net of depreciation and any provision for imparrment Depreciation 15 provided
on plant and equipment and freechold buildings, to write off the carrying value less the estimated residual value by
equal mstalments over their estimated useful econorme hives as follows

Leasehold land and buildings - life of lease
Freehold buildings - 50 years
Plant and equipment - 4-15 years

No depreciation 15 provided on frechold land

Any revaluation mcrease ansmg on the revaluation of freehold buildings 1s credited to revaluation reserve, except to
the extent that 1t reverses a revaluation decrease for the same asset previously recogmised as an expense, in which case
the increase 1s credited to the income statement to the extent of the decrease previously expensed A decrease n
carrying amount arising on the revaluation of such land and buildings 1s charged as an expense to the extent that it
exceeds the balance, 1f any, held 1n the properties revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that asset
Depreciation on re-valued freehotd buildings 1s charged to income An amount reflecting the realisation of the part of
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

the revaluation reserve that represents the depreciation so charged 1s transferred from revaluation reserve to retained
earnings, as allowed by IAS 16 41

Investment property

Investment property held by the group 1s held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation Investment property 1$
stated at fair value at the balance sheet date Gains or losses anising from changes i the farr value of investment
property are included 1n profit or loss for the period in which they anse

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value In determimng the cost of raw matenals,
consumables and goods purchased for resale, the weighted average purchase price 1s used Provision 15 made for
obsolete, stow-moving or defective items where appropriate

Loans and receivables

Trade receivables, loans, and other recervables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any impairment (see ‘impairment’ note) Interest income 1s recogmised by applying the effective interest rate, except
for short-term receivables when the recogmition of interest would be immatenal

Impairment

The carrying amounts of the Group’s assets, excluding investment properties and land and bwildings (as they are
revalued regularly), are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there 1s any indication of
mmparrment If any such mndication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount 15 estimated

The recoverable amount of assets 1s the greater of their net realisable value and value n use In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the nisks specific to the assets

Impairment 1s recogmised mn the income statement whenever the carrying amount of an asset or 1ts cash-generating
umt exceeds 1ts recoverable amount Where an impairment loss subsequenily reverses, the carrying amount of the
asset (or cash-generating umt) 15 1ncreased to the revised estimate of 1ts recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset {or cash-generating umit) in prior years A reversal of an impairment loss 1s recogmised
mmmediately 1n profit or loss, unless the relevant asset 1s carmed at a revalued amount, 1n which case the reversal of
the impairment loss 1s treated as a revaluation increase

Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses denvative financial instruments, where appropnate, to manage 1ts exposure to interest rate nsk, in the
form of interest rate swaps In accordance with 1ts treasury policy, the Group does not hold or 1ssue denvative
financial instruments for trading purposes However, derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are
accounted for as trading instruments

Dernvatives are mitially recogmised at fair value at the date a denivative contract 15 entered into and are subsequently
re-measured to their fairr value at each balance sheet date The resulung gamn or loss 1s recogmsed 1n profit or loss
immedhately unless the denvative 1s designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of
the recogrution 1n profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedge relationship

The fair value of interest rate swaps 1s the estimated amount that the Group would receive or pay to terminate the

swap at the balance sheet date, taking into account current interest rates and the current creditworthiness of the swap
counterpartics
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012

3. Significant accounting policies {continued)
Provisions

Provisions are recogmsed when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, 1t
15 probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation

The amount recogmised as a provision 1s the best estimate of the consideration requured to settle the present obligation
at the balance sheet date, taking 1nto account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation Where a provision
1$ measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, 1ts carrying amount is the present value of
those cash flows

4 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described 1n note 3, the directors are required to make
Judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and habihities that are not readily
apparent from other sources The estimates and associated assumptions are based on listorical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant Actual results may differ from these estimates Critical accounting policies
where judgements or estimations are necessarily apphed are summansed below

Impairment

The Group determines whether goodwill 1s impaired on an annual basis Other non-current assets are tested for
impairment if there are indicators of impairment  Impairment testing requires an estimate of future cash flows and the
choice of an appropriate discount rate

Depreciation and residual values

The Group reviews the asset lives and associated residual values of property, plant and equipment annually and have
concluded that asset lives and residual values are appropnate

19




Dorchester Group Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012

5. Revenue

An analysis of the group’s revenue 1s as follows

Year ended Year ended

2012 2011
£7000 £°000
Continuing operations
Hotel management and operations revenue 290,082 277,305
Property investment revenue 14,378 13,663
Total revenue 304,460 290,968
Other income not ncluded within revenue n the income statement
Interest income 2,057 645
Total income fer the year 306,517 291,613
6. Geographical analysis of revenue, operating profit and net assets
Revenue Operating Profit Net Assets
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
£°000 £000 £000 £2000 £000 £7000
Hotel management and
operations
USA 44,830 43,430 5,741 5,583 222719 231,542
Europe 138,652 146,090 (1,305) 15,614 146,117 148,999
United Kingdom 106,600 87,785 15,516 3,623 352,639 337,783
290,082 277,305 19,952 24,820 721,475 718,324
Property investment
Usa 14,378 13,663 9,588 13,925 95,377 94,020
304,460 290,968 29,540 38,745 816,852 812,344

All the above denve from continuing operations
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012

7. Operating profit

Operating profit 1s stated after charging/(crediting)

Auditor’s remuneration
Fees payable to the company’s auditor for the audit of the company’s annual accounts
Fees payable to the company’s auditor and their associates for other services to the
group - the audit of the company’s subsidianies

Total audit fees

Audit related assurance services
Taxation compliance services
Other taxation advisory services

Total non-audit fees

Total auditor’s remuneration

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Rentals under operating leases

Payable Land and buildings

Payable Plant and machinery

Recervable regarding hotel properties Land and bwmldings

Contingency rentals receivable regarding hotel properties Land and buildings
Loss on disposal of fixed assets

8. Staff costs

Directors' remuneration
Directors emoluments
Directors fees paid to ultimate parent

Remuneration of highest paid director
Emoluments or fees paid to ultimate parent

2012 2011
£000 £2000
41 47
300 279
341 326
187 91
119 118
134 113
440 322
781 648
21,087 17,884
9,110 8,603
1,026 1,273
(1,715) (1,733)
(241) (248)
112 6
2012 2011
£°000 £°000
141 112
120 143
141 112

No directors {2011 None) accrued any retrement benefits under either a defined benefit scheme or under a money

purchase scheme
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8. Staff costs (continued)

Average monthly number of persons employed excluding directors
Cperations

Sales and marketing

Admnistration

Staff costs during the year excluding directors
Wages and salartes

Social secunty costs

Other pension costs

9. Investment revenue

Interest recervable on
Bank deposits
Related party loans

Foreign exchange gains
Other

2012 2011
No. No
2,210 2,175
94 86
370 365
2,674 2,626
2012 2011
£000 £'000
77,492 79,208
21,891 22,057
3,955 4022
103,338 105,287
2012 2011
£2000 £2000
56 102
450 436
1,547 66
4 41
2,057 645
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10 Other gains and losses

2012 2011
£°000 £°000
Gain on revaluation of investment property 2,028 6,574
11 Finance costs
2012 2011
£°000 £7000
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts 5,808 5,902
Interest on other loans 2,047 1,881
Interest on finance leases 47 47
Amortisation of loan 1ssue costs 312 184
Change n fair value of interest rate swaps (3,268) (1,621)
Pension deficit net charge 189 348
Other 2 13
5137 6,754
12. Tax
Continuing
operations
Year Year
ended ended
2012 2011
£2000 £7000
Corporation tax
Current year 4,348 1,945
Adjustments 1n respect of prior years 214 47
Foreign tax 3,100 2,047
7,662 4,039
Deferred tax (note 22) 412 609
8,074 4,648

Corporation tax 1s calculated at 24 5% (2011 26 5%) of the estimated taxable profit for the year

Taxation for other junisdictions 1s calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective junsdictions
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12. Tax (continued)

The charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit per the income statement as follows

Year Year

ended ended

2012 2011

£000 £000

Profit before tax on continuing operations 26.460 12 636

Tax at the UK corporation tax rate of 24 5% (2011 26 5%) 6,483 8,649

Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible in determunung taxable profit 1,868 1,291
Movement due 1o fall 1n UK tax rate (3,004) (2,595)
Change mn unrecognised deferred tax assets - (5,643)

Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries operating 1n other junisdictions 2,245 2,635

Other 482 311

Tax expense for the year 8,074 4,648

In addition to the amount charged to the income statement, the following amounts relating to tax have been

recogrused 1n other comprehensive tncome

Year Year
ended ended
2012 2011
£°000 £°000
Deferred tax
Ansing on income and expenses recognised mn other
comprehensive income

Revaluation of property (4,311) 6,748
Pension Liability 95) 688
Total income tax recognised 1n other comprehensive income (4,406) 7,436
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13. Goodwill
Cost
£°000
At 1 January 2011 35,091
Foreign exchange movements 877
At 31 December 2011 34,214
Foreign exchange movements (996)

At 31 December 2012 33,218

Goodwill acquired 1n a business combination 1s allocated, at acquisition, to the cash generating units (CGUs) that are
expected to benefit from that business combination The carrying amount of goodwill had been allocated to the Hotel
Plaza Athénée, France and the Hotel Principe di Savoia, Italy

At the vear end, goodwill was reviewed for impairment 1n accordance with IAS 36 Impairment of Assets It was
considered appropriate for both constituents of goodwill to be subjected to a detailed value in use calculation This
was achicved by testing for impairment on the basis of discounted future cash flows ansing 1n each relevant CGU,
which 1s then compared to the carrying value of goodwill to determune 1f an impawrment has occurred Cash flow
forecasts derived from business plans over a 5 year penod, followed by a long term growth rate of 3% (2011 3%) per
annum were used A nisk adjustment 1s then made using a post-tax discount rates of 6 00% for Hotel Plaza Athénée
(2011 6 00%) and for Hotel Principe d1 Savoia 7 75% (2011 6 19%) to arrrve at the value in use for each of the
CGUs The post-tax discount rates applied are denved from the Group’s weighted average cost of capital The
assumptions used 1n the calculation of the Group’s weighted average cost of capital are benchmarked to externally
available data The Directors consider the assumptions to be reasonable based on the historic performance of each
CGU and to be realistic 1n light of economic and industry forecasts Having performed this review, the directors
conclude that no impairment 1s required

The calculation of value mn use for each CGU 1s most sensttive to the principal assumptions of discount rate and
growth rates Sensitivity analysis has been performed on the calculations and confirms that no reasonably possible
changes in the assumpticns would exceed therr recoverable amount for any of the CGUs The headroom on the Hotel
Principe di Savoia goodwill 1s shown below
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13. Goodwill (continued)

The headroom by the pnncipal CGUs and sensitivities thereon, which are shown as follows

Cash generating unit
(CGL)

As at 31 December 2012
Value 1n use

Less carrying value of land
and bwldmngs

Less carrying value of
goodwill

Headroom

Cash generating unit

(CGL)

As at 31 December 2011
Value 1n use

Less carrying value of land
and buildings

Less carrying value of
goodwill

Headroom

Hotel Principe di Savoia, Italy

Actual Decrease Increase
mmpawrment  growth rate  discount
analysis by 1% rate by 1%
£°000 £000 £7000
206,688 185,504 175,435

(149,242)  (149,242) (149,242)

(22,254)  (22,254) (22,254)

35,192 14,008 3,939

Hotel Principe d1 Saveia, Italy

Actual Decrease Increase
mmpairment  growth rate discount
analysis by 1% rate by 1%
£°000 £2000 £2000
261,839 207,979 199,050

(164,670)  (164,670) (164,670}

(22,921)  (22,921) (22,521)

74,248 20,388 11,459
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14. Property, plant and equipment

Cost or valuation

At ]| January 2011

Capital additions
Transfers

Disposals/write offs
Revaluation/(Devaluation)
Foreign exchange

At 31 December 2011
Capital additions
Transfers

Disposals/write offs
Revaluation/(Devaluation)
Foreign exchange

At 31 December 2012

Depreciation

At 1 January 2011

Charge

Transfers

Disposal/write offs
Revaluation/(Devaluation)
Foreign exchange

At 31 December 2011
Charge

Disposals/wnte offs
Revaluation/(Devaluation)
Foreign exchange

At 31 December 2012
Carrying amount

Net book value
At 31 December 2012

At 31 December 2011

At 31 December 2010

Fixtures,
fittings Assets
Land and Plant and and under
buildings Machinery equipment construction Total
£°000 £°000 £2000 £°000 £2000
1,216,115 57,183 163,552 6,938 1,443,788
3,242 4,571 11,536 12,349 31,698
6,991 4,276 2,996 (14,263) -
(11) (430) (5,056) - (5,497)
50,972 - - - 50,972
(13,612) (1,559) (2,641) {270) (18,082)
1,263,697 64,041 170,387 4,754 1,502,879
369 2,677 11,090 15,370 29,506
2,326 1,427 2,073 (5,826) -
(53) (108) (11,889) (147) (12,197)
(4,792) - - - (4,792)
(26,063) (1,421 (3,842) (148) (31,474)
1,235,484 66,616 167,819 14,003 1,483,922
(95) (50,165) (99.,477) - (149,737)
(780) (4,587) (12,517) - (17,884)
- 190 (190) - -
- 401 5,033 - 5,434
767 - - - 767
(25) 1,258 1,644 - 2,877
(133) (52,903) (105,507) - (158,543)
(881) (5,767) (14,439) - (21,087)
- 101 11,855 - 11,956
865 - - - 865
3 1,306 2,219 - 3,528
(146) (57,263) (105,872) - {163,281)
1,235,338 9,353 61,947 14,003 1,320,641
1,263,564 11,138 64,880 4,754 1,344,336
1,216,020 7,018 64,075 6,938 1,294,051

27



Dorchester Group Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012

14. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Included 1n the net book value of fixtures, fittings and equipment are items held under finance lease wath a net book
value of £8,000 (2011 £155,000)

The net book value of land and buildings compnise

2012 2011 2010

£°000 £°000 £°000
Freehold 1,234,053 1,262,213 1,215,894
Long leasehold 124 125 126
Short leasehold 1,161 1,226 -

1,235338 1,263,564 1,216,020

Land and buildings were revalued at 31 December 2012 by CBRE, independent valuers not connected with the group,
on the basis of market value The valuation conforms to International Valuation Standards and was based on recent
market transactions on arm’s length terms for similar properties

At 31 December 2012, had the land and bwildings other than nvestment property of the group been carried at
histonical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, therr carrying amount would have
been approximately £766 mullion (2011 £777 mullion )

The revaluation surplus 1s disclosed n note 28

15. Investment property

2012 2011 2010
£7000 £2000 £°000
Fair value
At 1 January 99 948 02,234 86,698
Additions 120 413 1,768
Revaluation 2,028 6,574 1,080
Foreign exchange translation differences (4,399) 727 2,688
At 31 December 97,697 99 94% 92.234

All of the Group’s mvestment properties are overseas frechold properties The comparable cost of the investment
propertes according to the listoncal cost convention was £93,313,000 (2011 £97,541,000)

Investment properties were independently valued as at 31 December 2012 by external chartered surveyors on the
basis of open market value The two firms used were CBRE (USA) and Bonz & Company Inc

The property rental income earned by the group from uts nvestment property amounted to £14,378,000 (2011
£13,663,000) Durect operating expenses ansing on the investment property, all of which generated rental income 1n
the period, amounted to £6,818,000 (2011 £6,312,000)
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16. Subsidiaries

The company and the group have mvestments in the following principal subsidiary undertakings

Country of Shareholding and
incorporation percentage voting
Subsidiary undertakings Principal activity rights
Dorchester Hotel Limated Hotel operations Great Britam 100% (Durect)
The Dorchester Limited Dormant Great Britain 100% (Indirect)
Dorchester Services Lumited Hotel management  Great Britain 100% (Direct)
Coworth Park Limited Hotel management  Great Britain 100% (Direct)
Meurice Limited Hotel investment Great Britam 100% (Direct)
Principe di Savoia Limited Hotel investment Great Britam 100% (Direct)
Hotel Plaza Athenee Limited Hotel mmvestment Great Britam 100% (Direct)
Sajahtera Inc Hotel operations USA 100% (Direct)
Aman Inc Investment property USA 106% (Indirect)
Raqib Inc Investment property USA 100% (Indirect)
Meurice SpA Hotel operations Italy 100% (Indirect)
Principe ch Savoia srl Hotel operations Italy 100% (Indirect)
Hotel Plaza Athenee SA Hotel operations France 100% (Indirect)
Plaza Athenee Holdings SA Hotel mvestment France 100% (Indirect)
17. Investments
2012 2011 2010
£2000 £2000 £°000
Cash on deposit with terms 1n excess of tharty days 2,520 7,011 6,100
18 Inventories
2012 2011 2010
£°000 £7000 £2000
Consumables 4.554 4,513 4,596
Goods for resale 2,279 2,459 2,589
6,833 6,972 7,185

There 1s no material difference between the replacement cost of stocks and their balance sheet amounts
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19, Trade and other recervables

Due within one year

2012 2011 2010

£2000 £°000 £000

Trade debtors 19,814 18,120 14,059
Provision for bad debts (532) (553) (603)

Net trade debtors 19,282 17,567 13,456

Other debtors 3,164 2,324 2,590

Amounts owed by fellow subsidiary undertakings 86,302 84,141 77,651

Overseas corporation tax 1,437 1,156 732

Prepayments and accrued income 11,485 11,294 9,425

121,670 116,482 103,854

Trade debtors that are not impaired

The ageing analysis of trade debtors that are neither individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are as
follows

2012 2011 2010

£°000 £000 £°000

Neither past due nor impaired 5,962 5,321 5,828
Less than 1 month past due 7,194 6,730 3,652
1 to 3 months past due 2,676 2,966 2,960
More than 3 months past due 3,450 2,550 1,016
Total 19,282 17,567 13,456

Trade debtors that are not impatred refer to debtors where no provision of doubtful debt 1s provided and aging 1s past
credit term

Receivables that are neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent
history of default

Recervables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group Based on past experience, management believes that no impairment allowance 15 necessary n
respect of these balances as these are considered fully recoverable

Due after more than one year

2012 2011 2010
£2000 £°000 £2000
Prepayments and accrued income 3,065 3,346 -
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20. Borrowings

2012 2011 2010
£°000 £°000 £7000
Included within current liabilities
Bank loans (secured) and overdrafis - 15,864 17,936
Loans from ultimate parent undertakings 203,92¢9 61,491 57,952
203,929 77,355 75,888
Included within non-current liabilities
Bank loans (secured) - 139,470 159,121
Loans from ultimate parent undertaking
Unsecured, subordinated and mnterest free - - 5,245
Loans from fellow subsidiary undertakings
Unsecured, subordinated and interest free 186,982 191,340 195,176
Unsecured, suberdinated and interest bearing 86,024 87,437 85,251
273,006 418,247 444,793
Total borrowings 476,935 495,602 520,681

At 31 December 2012 the group had no bank loans Bank loans had been advanced under several facilities with the
same bank, until they were repaid on 27 December 2012 They were denominated in Furcs and Sterling, taken cut 1n
2003 and were secured on the hotel assets Repayments were made twice a year, with final repayment being due 1n
June 2013 Interest was linked to LIBOR or EURIBOR rates of the country in which currency the loans were
denomuinated, plus a margin of between 0 75% to 0 80% The weighted average year end interest rate for these loans,

net of interest rate swaps (see below), was ml (2011, 3 19%)

The 1nterest beanng loans from fellow subsidiary undertakings of the Brune: Investment Agency (BIA”) bear
nterest at floating rates The weighted average year end interest rate for these loans was 1 44% (2011, 2 09%)

The mterest rate swaps which had been mn force through the year were all cancelled on 27 December 2012
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20. Borrowings (continued)

2012 2011 2010
£°000 £°000 £000
Loans maturing hetween:
Within 1 year 203,929 77,355 75,388
1 to 2 years amount to 672 140,158 21,131
2 to 5 years amount to 210,003 215,732 361,310
Over 5 years amount to 62,331 62,357 62,352

476,935 495,602 520,681

The bank loan 1ssue costs have been accounted for as a reduction 1n the loan amounts received These costs are then
amortised over the life of the loan at a constant rate At 31 December 2012 the amount of unamortised loan 1ssue
costs were £l (2011 £312,000)

21. Derivative financial instruments

2012 2011 2010
£°000 £°000 £°000
Financial liabilities carried at fair value
through profit or loss (FYTPL)
Interest rate swaps - 3,268 4,889

Further details of denivative financial instruments are provided 1n note 35
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22, Deferred tax

The following are the major deferred tax hiabilities and assets recognised by the group and movements thereon during
the current and prior reporting period

Other
Land & Finanecral Investment temporary
Buildings assets properties Pension Taxlosses  differences Total
£'000 £°000 £000 £000 £°000 £:000 £°000
Asset/(liability) at
1 January 2011 (273,847) 1,320 (2,445) 1,951 15,180 7.217  (246,624)
(Charge)/credat to profit or
loss (4,060) (503) (489) 57 6,025 (1,639 (609)
Charge to other
comprehensive income (6,748) - - (688) - - (7,436)
Exchange differences 2,496 - (38) - (712) (115) 1,631
At 31 December 2011 (282,159) 817 (2,972) 1,320 24,493 5463  (253,038)
{Charge)/credit to profit or
loss 599 817) (854) (59) 817 (98) 412)
Charge to other
comprehensive income 4,311 - - 95 - - 4,406
Exchange differences 6,055 - 148 - (713) (152) 5,338
At 31 December 2012 (271,194) - {3,678} 1,356 24,597 5,213 (243,706)

Deferred tax assets and hiabilittes are offset where the Group has a legally enforceable night to do so The following 1s
the analysis of the deferred tax balances (afier offset) for financial reporting purposes

2012 2011 2010
£000 £°000 £°000

Deferred tax habihities (274,872) (285,131) (276,292)
Deferred tax assets 31,166 32,093 29,668

(243,706) (253,038)  (246,624)

No deferred tax asset has been recogmsed n respect of tax losses of £189,000 (2011 £189,000, 2010 £18,301,000)
as 1t 1s not considered probable that there will be fiture taxable profits available against which to offset them

No deferred tax hability 1s recogmsed on temporary differences of £366m (2011 £113m) relating to the unremitted

carmngs of overseas subsidiaries as the Group is able to control the timings of the reversal of these temporary
differences and 1t 1s probable that they will not reverse 1n the foreseeable future
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23, Obligations under finance leases

Commtments under finance leases are set out below

2012 2011 2010
£°000 £000 £7000
Obligations under finance leases:
Minimnum lease payments payable
Within one year 199 199 199
In the second to fifth year inclusive 135 334 532
334 533 731
Less Finance charges allocated to future years (79) (126) (172)
255 407 559
24. Trade and other payables
Due within one year
2012 2011 2010
£°000 £°000 £°000
Amounts owed to ultimate parent undertakings 6,339 6,178 4,581
Trade creditors 16,780 15,420 14,014
Other creditors 1,453 2,365 2,349
Accruals, deferred income and guest deposits 24,666 21,444 16,344
VAT and other sales taxes 1,623 493 574
PAYE and other payroll taxes 7,257 11,726 6,752
58,118 57,626 47,614

Trade creditors are paid in line with the terms that are agreed with supphers, which range from 30 to 90 days

Due after more than one year

2012 2011 2010
£2000 £°000 £2000
Operating lease rental straight hnung 3,605 2,756 878

Ths relates to adjustments to equalise two (2011, two) property operating leases where the rentals payable for the
mtial years are stepped and include rent free periods, whereas rent expense to profit or loss 1s recognised on a straight
line basis
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25. Provisions

£000
Balance at 1 January 2011 602
Utilisation (25)
Charged to consolidated income statement 210
Foreign exchange gain (22)
Balance at 31 December 2011 765
Utihsation (18)
Charged to consohidated income statement 734
Foreign exchange gain (20)
Balance at 31 December 2012 1,461
These provisions relate mainly to potential payments 1n respect of a number of outstanding claims relating to
renovation projects and employment termunation disputes 1n the European hotels.
26. Share capital
2012 2010 2009
Called up share capital; £2000 £°000 £°000
Authorised:
ordinary shares of £1 each 200,000 200,000 200,000
Allotted, called up and fully pad
ordinary shares of £1 each 120,009 120,009 120,009

27. Share premium

Movements 1 share premum are included in the consolidated statement of changes 1n equity on page 12
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28 Revaluation reserves

Land &

buildings

£°000

Balance at 1 January 2011 349,809

Revaluation increase on land and buildings 49,186
Deferred tax liabilhity arnising on revaluation of land and buildings (6,748)
Foreign exchange (4,630)

Balance at 31 December 2011 387,617

Revaluation increase on land and buldings 4,597

Deferred tax liability arnising on revaluation of land and buildings 4,311
Foreign exchange (4,485)

Balance at 31 December 2012 392,040

29. Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences ansing from the translation of the financial
staternents of foreign operations Movements on translation reserve are shown 1n the consoltdated statement of
changes 1n equity on page 12

30. Retained earnings

Retained earmings comprnise the cumulative net gamns and losses recogmsed 1n the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income

31. Other reserves

Movements in other reserves are imcluded in the consolidated statement of changes n equity on page 12
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32. Notes to the cash flow statement

Profit for the year before tax

Adjustments for:

Investment revenues

Finance costs

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Increase 1n fair value of investment property

Increase 1n provisions

Reduction/(reversal of } 1n value of a freehold hotel property net of foreign
exchange effects

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital
(Increase)/decrease 1n inventories

(Increase) m receivables

Increase 1in payables

Cash generated by operations

Income taxes paid
Interest paid

Net cash from operating activities

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments (short term bank deposits)
Cash and bank balances

2012 2011

£1000 £2000

26,460 32,636
(2,057) (645)

5,137 6,754

21,087 17,884
(2,028) (6,574)

491 50

8,523 (2,557)

57,613 47,548

25) 120
(2,546)  (25,254)

3,187 22,901

58,229 45315
(7,849) (4,039)
(8.299) (8,375)

42,081 32,901

2012 2011 2010
£2000 £000 £7000
2,520 7,011 6,100
27,477 22,712 41,129
29,997 29,723 47,229

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and short-term bank deposits with an onginal matunity of three months or
less, net of outstanding bank overdrafts The carrving amount of these assets 1s approximately equal to their fair

value

37



Dorchester Group Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2012

33. Operating lease arrangements

The total amounts payable under the remainder of the life of non-cancellable operating leases 1s set out below

2012
Land and
bumldings
£000

Operating leases which expire
Within one year 8,909
Between one and five years 30,626
After five years 126,464
165,999

2012

Other
£000

530
497

1,027

2011
Land and
buildings

£2000

9,019
33,274
134,001

176,294

2011

Other
£°000

978
933

1,911

The group as lessor

At the balance sheet date, the group had contracted with tenants for the following future minimum lease payments on

operating leases for land and buldings

Hotel properties

Within one year
Between one and five years
After five years

Investment properties

Within one year
Between one and five years
After five years

2012 2011
£2000 £2000
1,353 1,268
1,965 2,417

41 )
3,359 3,685
2012 2011
£7000 £2000

11,384 11,728

39,132 38,296

17,052 21,328

67,568 71,352
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34. Retirement benefit schemes

The group operates two pension schemes 1n the UK One 15 a defined benefit scheme, which 1s closed to new entrants,
and the other 1s a defined contribution scheme Pension arrangements 1n France and Italy are through the state scheme
but the employers have deferred retirement habilities 1n the form of termunation indemmties

The pension habilities are as follows

2012 2011 2010

£2000 £000 £2000
UK Pension scheme (see below) 5,893 5,279 7,227
French state pension scheme termination indemnity 1,169 1,140 1,007
Itahan state pension scheme termunation indemnity 1,755 1,845 2,418
8,817 8,264 10,652

The company operates a funded pension scheme 1n the UK providing benefits based on final pensionable pay The
policy for accounting for pensions 1s included 1n note 3 The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of
the company, being invested with insurance companies

Qualified actuanies carry out full valuations on a trienmal basis, the last one being to 6 April 2011, using the projected
unit credit method The assumptions which have the most sigmificant effect on the results of the valuation are those
relating to the rate of return on investments and the rates of increase in salanes and pensions It was assumed that the
mvestment returns would be 4 20% (2011 5 1%) per annum, that salary mcreases would average 5% per annum and
that a proportion of members would withdraw from service each year other than by retirement

The pension charge under this scheme for the year includes current service costs of £315,000 (2011 £380,000), and
the total included 1n finance costs was £189,000 (2011 £348,000) The most recent actuarial valuation showed that
the market value of the scheme’s assets was £19,807,000 giving a funding level of 77% (2011 77%)

Actuarial assumptions

The principal assumptions used to determuine the actuanal present value of benefit obhigations and pension costs are
detailed below

2012 2011 2010

% % %o

Discount rate for plan habilities 420 480 550
Rate of inflation (RPI) 285 300 350
Rate of inflation (CPI) 215 230 -
Rate of increase in salanes 4135 4 50 500
Rate of increase of pensions 1n payment 215 230 350
Long term rate of return on plan assets 420 510 51

The weighted average life expectancy for mortality tables used to determune benefit obligations are detailed below

2012 2011 2010
Male Female Male Female Male Female
Member age 65 (current life expectancy) 221 242 219 241 226 257
Member age 45 (hfe expectancy at age 65) 234 257 234 257 24 4 278
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34 Retirement benefit schemes (continued)

The sensitivities regarding the principal assumptions used to measure the scheme liabilities are set out below

Assumption Change in assumption % Impact on scheme liabilities %
Discount rate Increase/Decrease by 0 5% Decrease/Increase by 8 3%
Rate of inflation Increase/Decrease by 0 5% Increase/Decrease by 3 5%
Rate of salary growth Increase/Decrease by 0 5% Increase/Decrease by 0 6%
Rate of mortality Increase/Decrease by 1 year Increase/Decrease by 3 5%

Balance sheet disclosure

2012 2012 2011 2011 2010 2010
Rate of Fawr value Rate of Fair value Rate of Fair value
return return return %
%o £°000 % £°000 £:000
Equity 6 50 6,621 6 50 5477 6 50 8,365
Government Bonds 285 3,420 230 3,320 425 2,823
Corporate bonds 420 7,303 4 80 6,827 550 6,388
Diversified growth funds 6 50 2,288 6 50 2,124 - -
Net current assets - 175 - 143 - -
Total market value of assets 19,807 17,891 17,576
Present value of scheme habilities (25,700} (23,170) (24,803)
Deficit 1n the pension plan/pension

hability (5,893) (5.279) (7,227)

No property occupied by, or other assets used by the Group are held by the scheme No amounts are included 1n the
scheme’s assets 1n respect of shares of the company

Amonnts recogrised 1n income are as follows;

2012 2011 2010

£°000 £°000 £°000
Analysis of the amount charged to administration expenses
Current service cost {315) (380) (311)
Total charge to admnustration expenses {315) (380) (311)
Analysis of the amount charged to finance costs
Expected retum on plan assets 908 994 1,012
Interest cost on plan liabilities (1,097) (1,342) (1,276)
Net charge to finance costs (139) (348) (264)
Total charge to income for the year (504} (728) (575)
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34. Retirement benefit schemes (continued)

Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income.

Amounts included n other comprehensive income for 2012 1n respect of the defined benefit plan are as follows

2012 2011 20190
£7000 £°000 £°000
Difference between actual and expected return on plan assets 1,189 26 278
Expenence gains ansing on plan liabilities - 2,299 -
Effects of changes 1n assumptions underlying the plan liabihities (2,061) (149) (1,741)
Total actuanal gamns and losses recogmsed in comprehensive mcome, (872) 2,176 (1,463)

The difference of £1,169,000 between actual and expected return on plan assets 1s 5 9% of the plan assets as at 31
December 2012 The total actuanal loss of £872,000 represents 3 4% of the present value of scheme Liabilities as at
31 December 2012

The cumulative amount of actuanal gains and losses recognised 1 the other comprehensive income since the date of
transion to JFRS 1s £(872,000) (2011 £2,176,000)

Analysis of movement in the present value of defined benefit obligations

2012 2011 2010

£°000 £°000 £°000
As at 1 January (23,170) (24,803) (22,611)
Current service cost (315) (380) 311)
Member contnbutions 47 (49) (53)
Interest on pension scheme hiabihities (1,097) {1,342) (1,276)
Actuanal gain/(loss) (2,061) 2,150 (1,741)

Benefits paid 990 1,254 1,025

Expenses paid - 164
As at 31 December (25,700) (23,170) (24,803)
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34. Retirement benefit schemes (continued)

Analysis of movement in the fair value of the scheme assets

As at 1 January

Expected return on plan assets
Actuanal gain

Employer contnbutions
Member contributions
Benefits paid

Expenses paid

As at 31 December

History between the expected and actual return on scheme assets

2012
£°000

17,891
908
1,189
762
47

(990)

2011
£000

17,576
994
26
500
49

(1,254)

2010
£°000

16,922
1,012
278
500
53

(1,025)

(164)

19,807

17,891

17,576

2011 2010
£°000 £°000

(23,170)  (24,803)
17,891 17,576

(5,279) (7,227)

26 278
01% 16%

2,299 -
99% -

2012

£000
Present value of defined benefit obhigation (25,700)
Amount (£’000})
Scheme assets 19,807
Amount (£°000)
Surplus/(deficit) (5,893)
Amount {(£’000)
Difference between the expected and actual return
on scheme assets
Amount (£°000) 1,189
Percentage of scheme assets 6 0%
Experience adjustments on scheme liabilities
Amount (£7000) -
Percentage of the present value of the scheme -
Liabilities
Total amount recognised in

comprehensive income

Amount (£°000) (872)
Percentage of the present value of the scheme Labilities 34%

2,176
94%

(1,463)
59%

2009
£°000

(22,611)
16,922

(5,689)

1,063

6 3%

(408)
18%

2008
£7000

(20,457)
12,253

(8,204)

3,166
25 8%

793
39%

(2,660)
13 0%

The actual return on scheme assets was £2,097,000 (2011 £1,020,000)

The company also operates a defined contnbutions scheme for which the pension cost charge for the year amounted

to £664,000 (2011 £586,000)

The estimated amount of contnbutions expected to be paid on the scheme during the 2013 financial year 1s

£1,045,000

42



Dorchester Group Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012

35. Financial Instruments

Categories of financial instruments

2012 2011 2010
£°000 £°000 £000
Financial assets

Cash and bank balances 27477 22,712 41,129
Held-to-maturity investments 2,520 7,011 6,100

Loans and recervables
Loans 86,302 84,141 77,651
Trade and other receivables 30,938 28,668 24,318

147,237 142,532 149,198

Financial liabilities
Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

Interest rate swaps - 3,268 4,889
Loans 476,935 495,602 520,681
Finance lease debt 255 407 559
Trade and other payables 61,723 60,382 48,492

538,913 559,659 574,621

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

The Group had derivative financial liabilities relating to interest rate swaps and these have been valued 1n accordance
with IFRS 7 The fair value measurement of these financial instruments 1s categorised as level 2, being denved from
mputs other than quoted prices The fair value of these instruments was £ml (2011 £3,268,000) and this 1s accounted
for as a hability 1n the consclidated balance sheet The movement 1n the fair value has been recorded as a finance cost
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income

All financial assets and habilities, excluding interest rate swaps, are accounted for in line with the principles outhned
1n the accounting policies and the Directors consider the carrying value to approximate therr fair value

Capital risk management

The Group manages 1ts capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximusing the return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance The Group’s overall
strategy remains unchanged from 2010 and 2011

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which includes the borrowings disclosed n note 20 after
deducting cash and cash equivalents, and equity attributable to equity holders of the parent, comprising 1ssued capatal,
reserves and retaimned earmings as disclosed 1n notes 26 to 31

Fmancial risk management objectives

The Group’s treasury policy 1s to manage financial risks that arise mn relatton 1o underlying business needs This 1s
achieved by managing liquidity, reducing financial nsk, mitigation of foreign currency and interest rate risks
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35. Financial Instruments (continued)
Market risk

The Group’s activities expose 1t primarily to the financial nsks of changes mn foreign currency exchange rates and
interest rates (see below) The Group uses the following to manage 1ts exposure to interest rate and foreign currency
nsks

. Interest rate swaps to mitigate the nisk of rising interest rates, and

. Local currency bank accounts and loans for each hotel within the group

Interest rate risk

The Group 1s exposed to interest rate risk because entities in the Group borrow funds at floating interest rates The
risk 15 managed by the Group by the use of interest rate swap contracts

The Group seeks to mimimuze the effects of this nsk by using denvative financial instruments where relevant The use
of financial denivatives 15 governed by the Group's policies approved by the board of directors, which provide written
principles on foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, and the use of financial derivatives and non-denvative financial
mstruments Compliance with policies and exposure limits 1s reviewed on a continuous basis The Group does not
enter 1nto or trade financial 1nstruments, including denvative financial mstruments, for speculative purposes

Interest rate nisk 1s hedged by the Group by exchanging the difference between fixed and floating rate interest
amounts calculated on agreed notional principal amounts on the group’s major external debt via the use of interest
rate swaps Funding for group companies 1s arranged centrally by the company who regularly momtors interest rate
risk

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for both derivatives and
non-denvative mstruments at the balance sheet date For floating rate habilities, the analysis 15 prepared assunung the
amount of liability outstanding at balance sheet date was outstanding for the whole year

If interest rates had been 0 5 per cent ugher/lower and all other vanables were held constant, the Group’s profit for
the year ended 31 December 2012 would decrease/increase by £702,000 (2011 decrease/increase by £501,000) This
1s mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its vanable rate borrowings

Interest rate swap contracts

At 31 December 2012, the Group held no interest rate swaps nor basis swaps

Up until 27 December 2012, when they were cancelled, the group held both nterest rate and basis swaps Thewr
nominal principals at 31 December 2011 totaled €170,611,000 Under interest rate swap contracts, the Group agreed
to exchange the difference between fixed and floating rate interest amounts caleulated on agreed notional principal
amounts Such contracts enabled the Group to mitgate the nisk of changing interest rates on the far value of 1ssued
fixed rate debt and the cash flow exposures on the 1ssued vanable rate debt The fair value of interest rate swaps at the
end of the reporting pertod was determined by discounting the future cash flows using the curves at the end of the
reporting pertod and the credit nsk mherent in the contract Details are as follows
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35. Financial Instruments (continued)
Interest rate swap contracts (cont.)

Under an interest rate swap contract taken ocut 1 2003, which was cancelled on 27 December 2012, on an amortising
notional amount (during 2012 1t averaged €26,719,000, 2011, €30,113,000), the fixed rate was 3 89% The floating
rate was three months EURIBOR

Under an interest rate swap contract taken out 1n 2004, which was cancelled on 27 December 2012, on an amortising
notional amount (during 2012 1t averaged €16,761,000, 2011, €18,867,000), the fixed rate was 4 29% The floating
rate was three months EURIBOR

Under an 1nterest rate swap contract taken out 1n 2004, which was cancelled on 27 December 2012, on an amortising
notional amount {(during 2012 1t averaged €39,109,000, 2011, €44,024,000), the fixed rate was 4 29% The floating
rate was three months EURIBOR

Under a basis swap contract taken out on 30 June 2011, which expired 1in June 2012, on an amortising notional
amount (duning 2012 1t averaged €85,306,000 (€90,740,000 1n 2011), three month EURIBOR was payable aganst 1
month EURIBOR plus § basis points receirvable

Under a basis swap contract taken out on 30 June 2010, which expired on 30 June 2011, on an amortsing notional
amount (during 2011 1t was €95,268,000, 2010, €99,797,000), three month EURIBOR was payable against 1 month
EURIBOR plus 12 basis pomnts recervable

Detauils of the carrying amounts of derivative financial instruments are shown later 1n this note on page 46-47
Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The Group undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies, consequently, exposures to exchange rate
fluctuations anse Exchange rate exposures are managed within approved policy parameters The Group 1s mamly
exposed to US Dollar and Euro

With respect to the Group’s foreitgn currency translation exposure, and assuming all other vanables, including interest
rates, remain constant, it 1s estimated that a 5% strengtheming of sterling against both the US dollar and the Euro
would have decreased net assets by £24,864,000 at 31 December 2012 (2011, £28,221,000) and increased profit
before tax by £1,934,000 (2011, decreased by £893,000) A 5% weakemng of sterling would exactly reverse the
position whereby net assets and profit would increase by the same amounts

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on 1ts contractual obligations resulting 1n financial loss to
the Group The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with credit worthy counterparties Counterparties for cash
and mvestments are with large established financial institutions Trade and other receivables credit risk 1s mitigated
by each hotel withun the Group having a credit control function to approve counterparties and momtor transactions
and exposure Loans to fellow subsidiary undertakings are backed by a letter of support from the ultimate parent, the
Brune: Investment Agency

Liquidity risk
Ultimate responsibility for hqudity nsk management rests with the board of directors, which has established an

appropriate hquidity risk management framework for the management of the Group's short-, medium- and long-term
funding and hqudity management requirements

Liquidity 1s managed on a daily basis by the treasury and finance functions of the Group They are responsible for
ensuring that the Company has adequate hquidity for all operations, ensuring that the funding mix 1s appropriate so as
to avoid matunty mmsmatches The Group manages liquidity risk on behalf of the Company by holding sufficient
hquid assets of appropnate quality to ensure that short term funding requirements are covered within prudent limuts
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35. Financial Instruments {continued)
Liquidity and interest risk tables

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual matunty for 1ts non-denvative financial habilities The
tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on
which the Group can be required to pay The table includes both interest and principal cash flows To the extent that
mterest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount 15 denved from mterest rate curves at the balance sheet date
The contractual maturity 1s based on the earliest date on which the Group may be required to pay

Carrying Within 1

amount year 1to2years 3toSyears 5+ years Total
£°000 £000 £°000 £000 £2000 £°000
31 December 2012
Non-1interest bearing loans 241,665 54,683 186,982 - - 241,665
Variable interest rate loans 232,765 148,811 24,516 5,099 62,331 240,757
Fixed interest rate loans 2,505 2,505 - - - 2,505
Fmance lease hability 255 152 103 - - 255
Trade & other payables 61,723 58,273 169 506 2,775 61,723
Tax habilities 3,372 3,372 - - - 3,372
542,285 267,796 211,770 5,605 65,106 550,277
31 December 2011
Non-1interest bearing loans 246,469 55,128 - 191,341 - 246,469
Variable interest rate loans 246,502 23,524 142,575 28,543 62,357 256,999
Fixed interest rate loans 2,631 2,631 - - - 2,631
Finance lease hability 407 152 152 103 - 407
Trade & other payables 60,382 57,626 155 506 2,095 60,382
Tax liabilities 951 g51 - - - 951
557,342 140,012 142,882 220,493 64,452 567,839
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35 Financial Instruments (continued)

Non-derivative financial assets

The following table details the Group’s non-denvative financial assets All amounts are due to be recerved within one
year The tables below have been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual matunties of the financial assets

Carrying Within 1

amount year Total
£2000 £2000 £°000
31 December 2012
Trade & other receivables, excluding prepayments 30,938 30,938 30,938
Amounts owed by fellow subsidiary undertakings - interest bearing 46,244 46,244 46,244
Amounts owed by fellow subsidiary undertakings — non-interest
beanng 40,058 40,058 40,058
Investments 2,520 2,520 2,520
Cash and bank balances 27477 27477 27,477
147,237 147,237 147,237
31 December 2011
Trade & other receivables, excluding prepayments 28,668 28,668 28,668
Amounts owed by fellow subsidiary undertakings - interest bearing 45308 45,308 45,308
Amounts owed by fellow subsidiary undertakings — non-nterest
beanng 38,833 38,833 38,833
Investments 7,011 7,011 7,011
Cash and bank balances 22,712 22,712 22,712
142,532 142,532 142,532

The following table details the Group’s liquidity analysis for 1ts denvative financial instruments based on contractual
maturities The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted net cash inflows and outflows on denvative
struments that settle on a net basis

Carrying Within 1

amount year 1to2years 2to3 years Total
£°000 £°000 £7000 £2000 £°000
31 December 2011
Interest rate swaps 3,268 106 3,162 - 3,268

31 December 2012
Interest rate swaps - - - - -
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36. Related party transactions

The company 1s a subsidiary undertaking of the Brune: Investment Agency, a statutory body incorporated 1n Brune:
Consequently, as a statutory body, related parties to the company include all Brune1 government mimstries,
departments, agencies and their subsidiary undertakings and also include Bruneian citizens holding office within
Brune: and 1ts government

The group provided hotel services to these related parties amounting to £2,631,119 (2011 £4,355,124) Amounts
owed for these servaces as at 31 December 2012 amounted to £1,949,483 (2011 £1,494,319) The group occupies a
bwlding m London owned by a fellow subsidiary undertaking, on an annually renewable agreement The total annual
rent 1s £1,162,654 (2011 £759,943) It1s estimated that the market rent of the building occupred 15 £1,162,654 (2011
£751,055) Amounts owed for the rental, associated rates and services as at 31 December 2012 amounted to £247,742
(2011 £447.909) Loans from fellow group companies are covered n note 20

During the year the company incurred branding and trademark license fees of £2,410,976 (2011 £2,470,101) from a
fellow subsidiary undertaking Amounts owed for these fees at 31 December 2012 amounted to £2,410,976 (2011
£2,380,454)

With the exception of the rental of the property, all other material related party transactions are contracied on
commercial terms

The company considers that key management are the board of directors, who provide the direction and strategy of the
group Darectors’ emoluments are set out 1n note 8

37. Subsequent events

In December 2012 as part of a group finance review, the entire external debt of the group was repaid and refinanced
by group bridging loans, which are due to mature on 30 September 2013 and will be replaced with either long term
finance from group or will be extended

On 17 September 2013 the group acquired 100% of the shares of Hotel Eden Srl, a five star hotel property in Rome,
Italy

38. Explanation of transition to International Financial Reporting Standards

These are the Group’s first consolidated annual financial statements prepared 1n accordance with International
Fimancial Reporting Standards adopted for use in the European Union (IFRS)

The accounting policies noted on pages 15-19 have been applied 1n preparmg the consolidated annual financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2011, the comparative information for the vear ended 31 December 2010
and the preparation of an opening IFRS balance sheet at 1 January 2010 (the Group’s date of transition)

First Time Adoption

IFRS 1 establishes the transitional requirements for the first time preparation of financial statements 1n accordance
with IFRS In general, a company 1s required to determine 1ts IFRS accounting policies effective at the reporting date
and apply these retrospectively to the balance sheet at the date of transition, and all financial statements for the
comparative period and the reporting period

To assist 1n the transition process, there are a number of exemptions to this retrospective application The following
sigmificant exemption has been adopted by the Group

1 Business combinations the Group has elected not 10 account for business combinations retrospectively in
accordance with IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’ Those combinations recogmsed prior to the date of
transition have not been restated

48




Dorchester Group Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012

38, Explanation of transition to International Financial Reporting Standards {continued)
Overview of Impact

For Dorchester Group Limited the adoption of IFRS gives nse to the following sigmificant changes

Measurement
1 Goodwill 1s no longer amortised but 15 stated at net book value at transition less any impairment

2 The recogmition of deferred tax in respect of all taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base
and the accounting base of balance sheet items

3 Freehold land and buildings are now stated at valuation as opposed to cost less depreciation, and frechold
buwldings are now depreciated

4 The recogntion of mvestment property valuation surpluses and deficuts through the income statement (1n
other operating income) mnstead of through reserves,

5  The recognition of certain financial struments at fair value Specifically under UK GAAP the Group did
not recognise denvatives on the balance sheet

6 Lease mncentives are spread over the lease term instead of shorter periods which are aHowed under UK
GAAP

Presentation

An explanation of how the transition from previous UK GAAP to IFRS has affected the Group’s financial position,
financial performance and cash flows 1s set out 1n the following tables and the notes that accompany the tables

Table

(a) Reconciliation to present the 31 December 2010 UK GAAP consolidated profit and loss account (under
IFRS format headings) for IFRS accounting policies

(b) Reconciliation to present the 31 December 2010 UK GAAP consolidated balance sheet under IFRS format
headings

(c) Reconcihation to present the 31 December 2010 UK GAAP consolidated balance sheet (under IFRS
headings) for IFRS accounting policies

(d) Reconciliation to restate the 1 January 2010 UK GAAP consolidated balance sheet for IFRS accounting
policies
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Dorchester Group Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2012

38. Explanation of transition to International Financial Reporting Standards (continued)

Table (2) Reconciliation to restate the 31 December 2010 UK GAAP consolidated profit and loss account for IFRS

accounting policies
Hotel
property Investment
Depreciation  property
2010 Goodwtlt Deferred & Revaluation Interest rate Property 2010
UK GAAP  Amortisation taxes Revaluation Pension rentals IFRS
£°000 £'000 £°000 £°000 £000 £1000 £000 £4000
Note (0] () [() (u() {w1) (v11)
Turmover/Revenue 266,955 - - - - - - - 266,955
Cost of sales (131,744) - - - - . - - (131,744)
Gross profit 135,211 - - - - - - - 135,211
Administrative expenses (102,707) 2,562 - (847) - - (30) (254) (101,276)
Other operating income 471 - - - - - - - 471
Revaluation gains on
investment property - - - - 1,080 - - - 1,080
Revaluation deficit of hotel
property - - - (7.970) - - - - {(7.970)
Operating profit 32,975 2,562 - (8,817 1,080 . (30) (254) 27,516
Interest receivable/finance
income 422 - - - - - - - 422
Interest payable/finance
expense (9,366) - . - - 802 . - (8,564)
Profit before tax 24,031 2,562 - (8,817) 1,080 802 (30) (254) 19,374
Tax on profit on ordmary
activittes/income tax (9,136) - 465 - - - - - (8,671)
Profit for the year 14,895 2,562 465 (8,817) 1,080 802 (30) (254) 10,703

Profit for the year 1s attnibutable solely to the owners of the company
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Dorchester Group Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2012

38 Explanation of transition to International Financial Reporting Standards (continued)

Table (b) Recenciliation to present the 31 December 2010 UK GAAP consolidated balance sheet under IFRS format

headings
Classification

Fixed assets/Non-current assets
Goodwill

Tangible assets/Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties

Current assets
Stocks/Inventones

Investments
Debtors due within one year/Trade and other receivables
Cash at bank and in hand/Cash and bank balances

Creditors: less than one year/Current liabilities
Trade and other payables

Current tax habilities
Obligations under finance leases
Borrowimgs

Creditors: greater than one year/Non-current liabilities

Borrowings

Pension habihity/Retirement benefit obligations
Deferred tax habilities

Provisions

Obligations under finance leases

Trade and other payables

Prowvisions for liabilities and charges

Net assets

IFRS
2010 UK GAAP presentational 2010 UK GAAP
reported reclassifications (IFRS presentation}
£°000 £:000 £°000

32,525 - 32,525
773,484 - 773,484
92,234 - 62,234
898,243 - 898,243
7,185 - 7,185
6,100 - 6,100
103,854 - 103,854
41,129 - 41,129
158,268 - 158,268
(126,122) 126,122 -

- (47,614) (47,614)

- (2,468) (2,468}

- (152) (152)

- (75,888) (75,888)
(126,122) - (126,122)
(445,824) 445,824 -

- (444,793) (444,793)
(8,799) (8,799)
(51,269) (51,269)

(602) § (602)

- (407) (407)

- (624) (624)
(506,494) - (506,494)
423,895 - 423,895

51



Dorchester Group Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012

38 Explanation of transition to International Financial Reporting Standards (continued)

Table (b) Reconcihation to present the 31 December 2010 UK GAAP consohdated balance sheet under IFRS format
headings (Continued)

2010 UK GAAP pres:rl:gtsmnal 2010 UK GAAP

Classification reported reclassificabons  (IFRS presentation)
£000 £°000 £'000

Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 120,009 - 120,009
Share premium account 37,711 - 37,711
Revaluation reserve 848 - 848
Profit and loss account / Retained earmings 192,660 (5,221) 187,439
Translation reserve - 5,221 5,221
Other reserves 72,667 - 72,667
Total capital employed 423 895 - 423,895
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Dorchester Group Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012

38 Explanation of transition to International Financial Reporting Standards (continued)

Table (¢) Reconcihation to restate the 31 December 2010 UK GAAP consolidated balance sheet {under IFRS format
headings) for IFRS accounting policies

2010 lovestment 2010
UK GAAP 1 January 2010 Goodwill Property Plant  Properties Interest rate Property
in IFRS adjusts. amortisation Deferred taxes & equipment  revaluation swaps Pensions rental IFRS
£000 £7000 £7000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £7000 £°000
Note See table (d) ()] () (i) (iv) (v) (vi) (vi)
MNom-current assets
Goodwill 32,525 - 2,566 - - - - - - 35,091
Property, plant
and
equpment 773,484 471 905 - - 48,662 - - - - 1,294,051
Investment
properties 92,234 - - - - - - - 92,234
Defemed tax
assels - 32,096 - (2.428) - - - - - 29,668
898,243 504,001 2,566 (2428) 48,662 - - - - 1,451,044
Current assets
Inventones 7,185 - - - - - - - - 7,185
Investments 6,100 - - - - - - - - 6,100
Trade and other
receivables 103,854 - - - - - - - - 103,854
Cash znd bank
balances 41,129 - - - - - - - - 41,129
158,268 - - - - - . - - 158,268
Total assets 1,056,511 504,001 2,566 (2,428) 48,662 - - - - 1,609,312
Current habilitres
Borrowings (75,888) - - - - - - - - (75.888)
Trade and other
payables (47.614) - - - - - . - - (47 514)
Obligations
under finance
leases {157 - - - - - . - - (152)
Derivative
financial
liabihities - (5.691) - - - - 802 - - (4 889)
Cument tax
Trabilities (2,468) - - - - - - - - (2.468)
(126,122) (5,691} - B - - 802 - - (131.011)
Non-current liabilittes
Bomowings (444 793) - - - - . - - (444,793)
Retirement
benefit
obligations (8,799) {1,392} - {430 - - - {30} - (10,652)
Provisions (602) - - - - - - - - (602)
Trade and other
payables {624) - - - - - - - {254) (878)
Obligations
under finance
leases (407) - - - - - - - - (407)
Deferred tax
labilities (51,269) {213,510) - (11,513) - - B - - (276,292)
(506,494) {214,902) - (11,944) - - - (30} {254) (733,624)
‘Total habilities (632 616) (220,593) - (i1 944) - - 802 (30) {254) (864,635)
Net ncsets 423,895 2383 408 2,566 (14,372) 48,562 - 802 (30} (254) 744,677
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Dorchester Group Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012

38 Explanation of transition to International Financial Reporting Standards (continued)

Table (c) Reconciliation to restate the 31 December 2010 UK GAAP consolidated balance sheet (under IFRS format
headings) for IFRS accounting policies (Continued)

2010
UK GAAP Property  Investment 2010
In IFRS I Janvary Goodwill Deferred Plant & Properties Interest rate Property
presentation 2010 adjusts amortisation taxes equipment  revaluation swaps Pensions rental IFRS
£'000 £°000 £000 £'000 £°000 £2000 £°000 £000 £000 £000
Note See table (d) () () {m) av) (3] () (v)
Equity
Issued capital 120,009 - - - - - - - - 120,009
Share premum 37,711 - - - - . - - R 37.711
Revaluation
reserve 848 310,428 - - 39,606 (1,073) - - - 349809
Other reserves 72,667 - - - - . - N R 72,667
Retaned camings 187,439 (27,020) 2,562 (17,095) 8,670 £,080 802 (30) (254) 156,154
Translation
reserve 5,221 - 4 2,723 386 (7N - - - 8,327
Total equity 423,805 283,408 2,566 (14,372) 48,662 - 802 (30) (254) 744,677
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Dorchester Group Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012

38 Explanation of transition to International Financial Reporting Standards (continued)

Table (d) Reconcihiation to restate the 1 January 2010 UK GAAP consolidated balance sheet for IFRS accounting

policies
Property
Plant & Investment
Goodwill Deferred equipment  Properties [Interest rate
UK GAAP amortisation taxes revaluation revaluatien swaps Pension 1IFRS
£000 £'000 £%000 £'000 £000 £*000 £°000 £000
Note 1 i) (1D} (1v) (v} (v1)
Non-current assets
Goodwll 36,385 - - - - . - 36,385
Property, plant and equipment 776,359 - - 471,905 . - - 1,248,264
Investment properties 86,698 - - - - . - 86,698
Deferred tax assets - - 32,09 . - - - 32,09
899,442 - 32,096 471,905 - - - 1,403,443
Current assets
Inventones 7,187 - - - - - - 7,187
Investments 27’779 - - - - - - 27’779
Trade and other recervables 81,397 - - - - - - 81,397
Cash and bank balances 26,097 - - - - - - 26,097
142,460 - ; - . - - 142,460
Total assets 1,041,902 - 32,096 471,905 - - - 1,545,903
Current hiabilities
Trade and other payables (41,094) - - - - - - (41,094)
Current tax Labilities (2,635) - - - - - - (2,635)
Obligattons under finance leases (152) - - - - - - {152)
Borrowings (58,808) . - . . - - (58,808)
Denvative financial Liabihities - - - - - (5,691) - (5,691)
(102,689) - - - (569D - (108,380)
Non-current habilities
Borrowings (455,373) - - - - - - (455,373)
Retirement benefit obligations (7,752) - (1,593) - - - 201 (9,144)
Deferred tax hiabilities (47,361) - (213,510) - - - - (260,871)
Provisions (1,410) - - - - - - (1,410)
Obligations under finance leases (558) - - - - - - (558)
Trade and other payables - - - - - - - -
(512,454) - (215,103) R . - 201 (727,356)
Total lrabilities (615,143) - (215,103) - - (5,691) 201 (835,736)
Net assets 426,759 - (183,007 471,905 - (5,691) 201 710,167
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Dorchester Group Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012

38. Explanation of transition to International Financial Reporting Standards (continued)

Table (d} Reconciliation to restate the 1 January 2010 UK GAAP consolidated balance sheet for IFRS accounting
policies {(Continued)

Property
Plant & Investment
Goodwill Deferred equipment  Properties Interest rate
UK GAAP amortisation taxes revaluation revaluation swaps Pension IFRS
£2000 £°000 £000 £000 £7000 £000 £:000 £°000
Note (e} () () {rv) v) (w)
Equity
Issued captal 120,009 - - - ; . - 120,009
Share premium 37,711 - - - - - - 37,711
Revaluation reserve (225) - (227,664) 537,867 225 - - 310,203
Retatned carmings 196,597 - 44,657 (65,962) (225) (5,691 201 169,577
Translation reserve - - - - - - - -
Other reserves 72,667 - - - - - - 12,667
Total equity 426,759 - (183,007) 471,905 - (5,691) 201 710,167

Notes to tables (a) to {(d)
i Goodwill amortisation

The Group has adopted TAS 38 which has resulted 1n adding back to the income statement the amortisation
charge 1n 2010 (table (a)), and increasing the value of goodwill and retained earmings at 31 December 2010
(table (c)) There i1s no effect on values at the date of transition to IFRS (1 January 2010), because IFRS 1
directs that previous amortisation of goodwill should not be reversed on transition
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Dorchester Group Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2012

38. Explanation of transition to International Financial Reporting Standards (continued)

Notes to tables (a) to (d) (Continued)

ii

iii.

iv.

Deferred taxes

31 December
1 January 2010 2010
£°000 £000
Group deferred tax Liabtlity - UK GAAP 54,377 58,184
Group deferred tax asset — UK GAAP (7,016) (6,915)
Group net deferred tax hability — UK GAAP 47,361 51,269
Property assets* 206,494 218,108
Other (9,123) (7,283)
Tax losses carry forward (14,364) (13,519)
Deferred tax on penston liabihty now grossed up under IFRS (1,593) (1,951)
Increase in deferred tax liability 181,414 195,355
Group net deferred tax liability — IFRS 228,775 246,624
Compnising,
Group deferred tax labihity — IFRS 260,871 276,292
Group deferred tax asset — IFRS (32,096) (29,668)
Group net deferred tax hability — IFRS 228,775 246,624

*Property assets compnise property, plant and equipment and investment properties

Property, plant and equipment

On the adoption of [AS186, the Group has changed to a revaluation approach from using depreciated histonic
cost Ths has resulted 1n an increase 1n the value of property, plant and equipment and revaluation reserve at
date of transition to IFRS (1/1/2010, table {(d)} and further increases as a result of an annual revaluation at 31
December 2010 (table (c))

On the adoption of IAS16, the Group depreciates frechold buildings Table (a) shows the adjustment to
charge depreciation on freehold buildings to profit or loss for 2010

Investment properties

The Group has adopted 1AS 40 ‘Investment Property’ IAS 40 1s consistent with the Group’s previous
accounting policy of revaluing imvestment properties annually The principal change under IFRS 1s that
valuation surpluses and deficits ansing are required to be recorded in the income statement (in other
operating imncome) under 1AS 40 Under UK GAAP, such surpluses and deficits were recorded directly
within reserves The adjustment to profit or loss 1s shown 1n table (a)
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Dorchester Group Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012

38. Explanation of transition to International Financial Reporting Standards (continued)

Notes to tables (a) to (d) (Continued)

v. Interest rate swaps

|
Under UK GAAP, the Group did not recogmse derivatives In accordance with [IFRS, denvatives are }
recogmsed at fair value through profit or loss The effect 1s to include the hability on the balance sheet and a 1
corresponding reduction 1n reserves, at 1 January 2010 see table (d), at 31 December 2010 see table (¢) The !
adjustment to profit or loss in 2010 1s shown 1n table (a)

vi Retirement benefit obligations

On the adoption of IAS 19, ‘Employee Benefits® the group reviewed the valuation of retirement benefit
obligations 1n each scheme host country resulting 1n a reduction of the liability and 1ncrease 1n retained
earnings at 1 January 2010 and as shown in table d The adjustments retating to 2010 are shown 1n tables (a)
and (c)

vii, Property rentals payable

Under UK GAAP, the Group spread imitial lease incentives on operating leases on a straight line basis over
the pertod to the first rent review Under IFRS they are spread over the period of the lease This has resulted
1n an extra charge to profit or loss in 2010 as shown n table {(a)

viii.  Total effect on equity for 2010

A summary of the effect on total equity of the adjustments set out 1n the above notes 1s set out below

1 January 31 December

2010 2010
£7000 £'000
(1)  Goodwill amortisation - 2,566 '
(1) Deferred tax (183,007) {197,379)
(i1}  Property plant and equipment revaluations 471,905 521,414
Freehold buildings depreciation - (847) I
(1v) Investment properties - -
(v) Interest rate swap recognition (5,691} (4,889)
(v1}) Retirement benefit obligations 201 171
(vn) Property rentals payable - (254)
Net increase n total equity 283,408 320,782
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Dorchester Group Limited

Company balance sheet
As at 31 December 2012

Fixed assets
Investments
Tangible fixed assets

Current assets

Debtors amounts falling due within one year

Debtors amounts falling due after more than
one year

Cash at bank and 1n hand

Creditors: amounts falling due within one
year

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

Creditors: amounts falling due after
more than one year

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Called up share capital
Share premaum account

Profit and loss account

Shareholder’s funds

Notes

o Qv

2012
£000 £000
343,871
10
343,881
41,192
134,042
1,426
176,660
(84,281}
92,379
436,260
(182,398)
253,862
120,009
37,711
96,142
253,862

2011
£000 £000
433,268
33
433,301
39,105
186,701
285
226,091
(56,252}
169,839
603,140
(263,466)
339,674
120,009
37,711
181,954
339,674

These financial statements of Dorchester Group Limited (company no 01823605) were approved and authonised for

1ssue by the Board of Directors on

Signed on behalf of the Boatrd of Directors

oSy~

Khairuddin Abd Hamud

Director

2013
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Dorchester Group Limited

Notes to the company accounts
For the year ended 31 December 2012

A. Accounting policies

The financial statements are prepared i accordance wath applicable Unmited Kingdom accounting standards
and law The particular accounting policies adopted are descnbed below and have been applied consistently
throughout the year and the preceding year

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis which assumes that the Company wll
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future, as further discussed in the Director’s report

Accounting convention and basis of preparation
The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention

The company has taken advantage of the exemption under Section 408 of the Compames Act 2006 from
presentng 1ts own profit and loss account The loss after tax dealt wath 1n the accounts of Dorchester Group
Limited, determned 1n accordance with the Act, was £85,812,000 (2011 £12,544,000 loss)

Under FRS1 (revised) ‘Cash Flow Statements’, the Company 1s exempt from the requirement to prepare a cash
flow statement as 1its cash flows are mncluded within the published consolidated cash flow statement of
Dorchester Group Limited

The Company 1s also exempt under the terms of the revised FRS 8 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ from disclosing
related party transactions with wholly-owned subsidiaries within the Group

Investments

Investments held as fixed assets are stated at cost less provision for any impairment

Financial instruments

Interest rate swaps are held off balance sheet but disclosed in the notes of the consclidated accounts  All

mcome and expenses related to the swaps are included 1n the profit and loss account

The company applies net mvestment hedge accounting as pernutted by SSAP 20 for a net investment 1n a
French subsidiary held i Euros and a Euro loan due to Brune:i Investment Agency taken to finance the
acquisttion of the subsidiary

Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost, net of depreciation and any provision for impairment Depreciation 18
provided on all tangible fixed assets, other than freehold land and hotel buildings, to write off the cost less the
estimated residual value of tangible fixed assets by equal mstalments over their estumated useful economic
hves as follows

Leasehold land and buildings life of lease
Plant, machinery, fixtures, fittings and equipment - 4-15 years
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Dorchester Group Limited

Notes to the company accounts (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012 .

A. Accounting policies (continued)

Impairment

The carrying amounts of the Company’s tangible fixed assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to
determuine whether there 18 any indication of impairment If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount 1s estimated

The recoverable amount of assets 15 the greater of their net reahisable value and value in use In assessing
value 1n use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the ime value of money and the nisks specific to the assets

Impairment 1s recogmsed 1n the income statement whenever the carrying amount of an asset or 1ts cash-
generating unit exceeds 1ts recoverable amount Impairment losses are reversed 1f there has been a change 1n
the estnmates used to determine the recoverable amount

Foreign currencies

Transactions denominated 1n foreign currenctes are translated mto sterling at the rates ruling at the dates of
the transactions Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date
are retranslated at the rates ruling at that date Those translation differences are dealt wath 1n the profit and

loss account

Leases \

The Company has no assets held under finance leases and other similar contracts Amounts payable under |
operating leases are charged to the profit and loss account on an accruals basis

Taxation !

Current tax 1s provided at amounts expected to be paid (or recovered) using the tax rates and laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

No deferred tax was recogmised at 31 December 2012 (2011 ntl)

B Directors’ remuneration and employees

Details of Directors’ remuneration in the current and prior year are given in note 8 of the consolhidated
financial statement on pages 21-22

The average number of employees excluding Directors during the year was 4 (2011 3)
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Dorchester Group Limited

Notes to the company accounts (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012

C. Tangible Fixed Assets

Cost
At 1 January 2012 and 31 December 2012

Accumulated depreciation
At | January 2012
Charge

At 31 December 2012

Net book value
At 31 December 2012

At 31 December 2011

D. Fixed asset investments

Cost

at 1 January

Investment in subsidiary undertakings at cost

Investment in subsidiary undertakings by means of share for share
exchange

Sub total

Loans to subsidiary undertakangs
at 31 December

Provision for impairment

at 1 January

Impairment charge

at 31 December

Net book value

Fixtures,
Plant and fittings and

machinery equipment Total
£000 £000 £000
93 29 122
63 21 89
17 6 23
85 27 112
3 2 10
25 8 33

2012 2011

£000 £000

136,770 136,770

182,711 182,711

319,481 319,481

123,391 123,391

442 872 442,872

9,604 -

89,397 9,604

99,001 9,604

343,871 433,268
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Dorchester Group Limited

Notes to the company accounts (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012

D. Fixed asset investments (continued)

The company has investments 1n the following principal subsicdiary undertakings

Subsidiary undertakings

Principal activity

Country of
incorporation

Shareholding and
percentage voting
rights

Dorchester Hotel Limuted Hotel operations Great Britain 100% (Direct)
The Dorchester Limited Dormant Great Britain 100% (Indirect)
Dorchester Services Limted Hotel management  Great Britain 100% (Darect)
Coworth Park Limated Hotel management  Great Britain 100% (Direct)
Meurnice Limited Hotel investment Great Britain 100% (Direct)
Principe di Savoia Limited Hotel investment Great Britain 100% (Direct)
Hotel Plaza Athenee Limuted Hotel investment Great Britam 100% (Drrect)
Sajahtera Inc Hotel operations USA 100% (Direct}
Aman In¢c Investment property USA 100% (Indirect)
Raqib Inc Investment property USA 100% (Indirect)
Meurice SpA Hotel operations Italy 100% (Indirect)
Principe di Savoia srl Hotel operations Italy 100% (Indirect)
Hotel Plaza Athenee SA Hotel operations France 100% (Indirect)
Plaza Athenee Holdings SA Hotel investment France 100% (Indirect}
E. Debtors: amounts falling due within one year
2012 2011
£000 £000

Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 41,138 39,060
Amounts owed by fellow subsidiary undertakings 18 1
Prepayments 35 43
Other debtors 1 1

41,192 39,105

F. Debtors. amounts falling due after more than one year

2012 2011

£000 £000
Loans to subsidiary undertakings at floating rates 14,769 68,419
Loans to subsidiary undertakings free of interest 119,273 118,282

134,042 186,701
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Dorchester Group Limited

Notes to the company accounts (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012

G. Creditors: amounts falling due within ene year

2011 2011
£000 £000
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 268 1,674
Amounts owed to ultitmate parent undertakings 83,019 47,211
Bank loans and overdrafis - 6,767
Trade creditors 121 53
Accruals and deferred income 873 547
84,281 56,252
H. Creditors' amounts falling due after more than one year
2012 2011
£000 £000
Bank loan (secured) - 77,669
Loan from subsidiary undertaking — unsecured,
subordinated and interest free 27,455 27,455
Loan from fellow subsidiary undertaking — unsecured,
subordinated and nterest free 154,943 158,342
182,398 263,466
2012 2011
£000 £000
Loans maturing within
1 to 2 years 154,943 77,669
2 to 5 years 27,455 158,342
Over 3 years - 27,455

182,398 263,466

Bank loans were secured on the hotel assets and subject to interest at floating rates linked to interbank rates of
the country in which currency the loans are denominated, plus a premium ranging between 0 2% and 0 5%

The 1nterest bearing loans from fellow subsidiary undertakings of the Brune1 Investment Agency (“BIA”} bear
mnterest at floating rates All bank loans were repaid and refinanced by group debt at the end of December
2012 In addition to repaying the bank loans, all interest swaps, which had been in force through the year, were
cancelled as at the end of December 2012 The company did not hold any nterest rate swaps with any fair
value (2011 £3,268,000 liabihty)

The bank loan 1ssue costs have been accounted for as a reduction 1n the loan amounts received These costs
are then amortised over the life of the loan at a constant rate At 31 December 2012 the amount of
unamortsed loan issue costs were nil (2011 £312,000)
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Dorchester Group Limited

Notes to the company accounts (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012

I. Reconciliation of movements in shareholders’ funds

Share Share Profit and loss Total
capital premum account
£000 £000 £000 £000
Balance at 1 January 2012 120,008 37,711 181,954 339,674
Loss for the year - - (85,812) {85,812)
Balance at 31 December 2012 120,009 37,711 96,142 253,862
The company paid no dividends in 2012 (2011 ml)
J. Called up share capital
2012 2011
£000 £000
Authorised:
ordinary shares of £1 each 200,000 200,000
Allotted, called up and fully paid:
ordmnary shares of £1 each 120,009 120,009

K. Financial commitments

At 31 December 2012, the company had annual commitments under non-cancellable operating leases as set

out below

Operating leases which expire
Within one year

2012
Land and
buildings

£000

132

2011
Land and
buildings

£000

132

At 31 December 2012, the company had no capital commitments (2011 nil)

L. Contingent liabilities

There were no contingent habalities at the end of the financial year




Dorchester Group Limited

Notes to the company accounts (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012

M. Ultimate parent and controlling party

Ammar Holdimg Cooperatief a Dutch COOP 1s the immedaate controlling party and the smallest group 1n
which the company 1s consohdated The ultimate parent and controlling party 1s the Brune: Investment
Agency, a statutory body incorporated 1n Bruney, and the largest group in which the company 1s
consolidated

N. Subsequent events
In December 2012 as part of a group finance review, the entire external debt of the company was repaid and
refinanced by group bridging loans, which are due to mature on 30 September 2013 and will be replaced with
cither long term finance from group or will be extended

On 17 September 2013 the company acquired 100% of the shares of Hotel Eden Srl, a five star hotel property
in Rome, Italy
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